




City of Colfax 1 

City Council Minutes October 14, 2015 

 

City of Colfax 

City Council Minutes 

Regular Meeting of Wednesday, October 28, 2015 

City Hall Council Chambers 

33 S. Main Street, Colfax CA 

 

1 CALL CLOSED SESSION TO ORDER 
 

1A. Mayor Douglas called the meeting to order at 6:15PM. 

1B. Roll Call 

Councilmembers present:  Douglass, Hesch, Parnham and Stockwin 

Excused absence:  Harvey 

1C. Public Comment ï Closed Session Items 

No public comment 

1D. Closed Session Agenda 

Potential Real Estate Negotiations 

Property: APN 101-132-018 ï Winner Chevrolet 

Council convened to Close Session. 
 

2 CALL REGULAR MEETING TO ORDER 
 

The Open Session of the Regular Council Meeting was called to order at 7:00PM by 

Mayor Douglass.  

2A. The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Jim Dion, Owner of the Colfax Theater. 

2B. Mayor Douglass stated that the closed session covered contract negotiations and 

there was no reportable action taken. 

2C. Roll Call:  

Councilmembers present:  Douglass, Hesch, Parnham, and Stockwin 

Absent:  Harvey 

2D. Approval of Agenda: 

On a motion by Councilmember Stockwin, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Parnham, 

the City Council approved the agenda. 

AYES:   Douglass, Hesch, Parnham, Stockwin 

NOES:   None 

ABSENT: Harvey 
 

3 PRESENTATIONS 
 

3A. Council Certificate of Appreciation to Gunda Pramuk, Colfax Library 

Branch Manager 

Mayor Douglass expressed the sentiments of many people in town including patrons of 

the library, co-workers at the library, councilmembers, Ms. Pramukôs supervisor and 

himself.  Ms. Pramuk will be missed for her great customer service, positive outlook and 

wonderful childrenôs activities. He presented Ms. Pramuk with a Certificate of 

Appreciation from the City Council.   

City Manager Miller presented her with a book to be donated to the library in her honor. 

 

 









City of Colfax 5 

City Council Minutes October 14, 2015 

 

¶ She expressed excitement about the fireworks being part the Winterfest 

Celebration, but concern that she hasnôt seen much advertisement or notice in the 

paper. 

¶ Ms. Claxton reported that she had a great interaction with one of the local Union 

Pacific Railroad (UPRR) employees, Fred Garcia.  Not only did he accompany her 

to an abandoned UPRR track so that she and her team could clean up a homeless 

camp, he contributed significantly to bagging and loading of the camp debris. 

¶ She announced that she and her team will be cleaning up another homeless camp 

behind Dr. Foxôs office on Friday at 9:00AM.  She encouraged everyone to 

participate in the clean-up and in monitoring the location to prevent the site from 

being reused.   
 

7 COUNCIL BUSINESS 
 

7A. Request for approval of two Welcome to Colfax signs. 

STAFF PRESENTATION: Mark Miller, City Manager 

RECOMMENDATION:  Move to approve design, purchase and installation of 

ñWelcome to Colfaxò signs for the two major entrances to town. 

City Manager Miller reminded Council of previous conversations about the lack of 

connection between Highway 174, Highway I-80, and Downtown.  The Hwy 174 sign to 

N. Main Street for travelers from Grass Valley is barely visible and the link from I-80 is 

confusing.  The owners of ñBack to the Drawing Boardò, a nationally renowned sign 

company, live near Colfax and have designed a 4x8 3-dimensional sign to vividly mark 

the entrances into town.  The sign company has agreed to build 2 signs, essentially at cost 

ï about $2500 each ï and to sign over rights to the artwork.   

Councilmember Stockwin stated that he likes the artwork but mentioned we do have 

other signs along S. Auburn.  He feels the artwork would be more appropriate if a steam 

engine were actually on display in the downtown. 

City Manager Miller commented that the steam engine on the sign is stylized similarly to 

the train-shaped plant hangers on downtown lampposts and gives homage to the history 

of Colfax. 

Mayor Douglass stated that we need both the engine and the sign! 

Councilmember Hesch stated that he is in favor of the sign. He has been assured the signs 

will be UV protected and color fast.  They need to last a long time. 

Mayor Pro Tem Parnham agreed that a sign along S. Auburn would be helpful. 

Foxey McCleary stated that placement of the sign could be a project for the economic 

development group that the art group is bringing into town. 

Jeannie Claxton likes the idea of the sign better than a billboard. 

On a motion by Mayor Pro Tem Parnham, seconded by Councilmember Hesch, the 

City Council agreed to purchase two signs from Back to the Drawing Board for 

approximately $5000. 

AYES:   Douglass, Hesch, Parnham, Stockwin 

NOES:   None 

ABSENT: Harvey 

 

 
 









 

 

 

 

 

 
  

FOR THE NOVEMBER 18, 2015 COUNCIL MEETING 
 

FROM: Mark Miller, City Manager 
PREPARED BY: Laurie Van Groningen, Finance Director 

DATE: November 4, 2015 
SUBJECT: City of Colfax Cash Summary Report: October 2015 

 

X N/A   FUNDED   UN-FUNDED AMOUNT:  FROM FUND:   
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Accept and File City of Colfax Cash Summary Report October 2015. 

SUMMARY: 
Staff recommends that the Council accepts and files the Colfax Cash Summary Report for October 2015. 
 

BACKGROUND AND ANALYSIS:  
These monthly financial reports include General Fund Unassigned Cash Analysis Graphs and the City of Colfax 
Cash Summary Report (with supporting documentation).  The reports are prepared monthly on a cash basis and 
are reconciled to the General Ledger accounting system, previous reports and bank statements.  Detailed 
budget comparisons are provided as a mid-year report and also as part of the proposed budget process each 
year. 
 

The purpose of the reports is to provide status of funds and transparency for council and the public of the 
financial transactions of the City. 
 

CONCLUSION:   
The attached reports reflect an overview of the financial transactions of the City of Colfax in October 2015.   
 

Monthly highlights include: 

¶ General Fund Reserved Cash is tracking consistently with previous years and our General Fund Reserve 
balance has been met consistently for the past nine months. 

¶ October expenditures included: 
o Quarterly payment for Fire Services - $6,700 

o Quarterly payments (2) for Animal Control Services - $13,200 

o Quarterly payment for Workers Compensation insurance - $9,300 

¶ Negative fund balances in Restricted and Capital Funds are due to timing of funding allocations and 
reimbursements.  Both Fund 218 and Fund 250 typically are funded later in the fiscal year and full 
funding is anticipated.  Capital Fund 350 (UPPR Ped Xing Project) has anticipated reimbursement funding 
of $300,000, but also additional payments to Contractor and Union Pacific are still anticipated.

 
ATTACHMENTS: 

1. General Fund Reserved Cash Analysis Graphs 
a. Cash Analysis ς Balance 
b. Expenses by Month 
c. Revenues by Month 

2. Cash Activity Reports  
a. Cash Summary 
b. Cash Transaction Report ς by individual fund 
c. Check Register Report  
d. Daily Cash Summary Report 







4 of 11













10 of 11











AGREEMENT 

 

1. Fair Share Allocation.   In consideration of the benefits Ownerôs property will receive 

from the Public Improvements, including enhancement of development potential and 

municipal services, Owner agrees that the share of the costs properly allocated to Owner 

based on the percentage of acreage owned by the Owner in relation to the total amount of 

the acreage in the twenty-five parcels benefitting from the Public Improvements is the 

sum of $73,923 in accordance with Ordinance 466 plus interest as hereinafter provided 

(ñOwnerôs Fair Share Allocationò). 
 

2. Payment.   The Owner shall pay Ownerôs Fair Share Allocation to the City in agreement 

with the terms follows:  

Owner shall pay the City, in lawful money of the United States and at the location 

specified in Paragraph 10 of this Agreement, Ownerôs Fair Share Allocation with 

interest in like lawful money from the Effective Date of this Agreement at the 

California Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) rate on the amounts of 

principal sum remaining unpaid from time to time. As of the Effective Date of 

this Agreement, the LAIF rate is approximately 0.3% per annum and will 

probably change from time-to-time. Payments of principal and interest shall be 

made in no more than twenty semi-annual installments due no later than 5:00 p.m. 

Pacific Standard Time on December 31 and June 30 of each year commencing in 

accordance with Ordinance 466 and continuing thereafter until paid in full. Each 

payment shall be credited first on interest and the remainder on principal, and 

interest shall thereupon cease on the principal so credited. Each payment shall be 

no less than $3,696.15 plus accrued interest except for the first, which may vary 

depending upon the date the payment periods begin. First payment shall be due 

upon economic use or development of the parcel. Owner shall have the right to 

prepay all or any portion of Ownerôs Fair Share Allocation at any time, without 

penalty.  

3. Default And Remedies.  
 

Ownerôs Fair Share Allocation will become due and payable immediately, 

without presentment, demand or notice, if Owner (a) fails to make the required 

principal and interest payments when due, (b), becomes insolvent, (c) files a 

petition in bankruptcy, either voluntarily or involuntarily, (d) institutes any 

proceeding under any bankruptcy or insolvency laws relating to the relief of 

debtors, or (e) makes an assignment for the benefit of creditors. In any such event, 

Owner waives demand, presentment for payment, protest and notice. Each such 

event shall constitute an ñEvent of Defaultò in which case the City shall be 

entitled to exercise any remedy available to the City in law or in equity.  

 

ITEM 4C



4. Covenants Run With The Land. All terms, provisions, and obligations contained in this 

Agreement shall be binding upon the parties and their respective heirs, successors and 

assignees, and all other persons or entities acquiring all or any portion of the Property, or 

any interest therein, whether by operation of law or in any other manner whatsoever. All 

of the provisions of this Agreement shall constitute covenants running with Ownerôs 

Property pursuant to applicable law, including but not limited to, Section 1468 of the 

Civil Code. Owner agrees that the covenant to pay the Ownerôs Fair Share Allocation of 

the cost of the off-site Public Improvements is for the benefit of the Property and is a 

burden upon such Property, runs with the property, and is binding upon each successive 

owner during ownership of such Property, or any portion thereof, and each party having 

any interest in the Property derived in any manner until such time as this Agreement 

terminated as provided in Section 5 of this Agreement. 
 

5. Termination of Agreement.  This Agreement shall terminate upon receipt by the City of 

Ownerôs payment in full of Ownerôs Fair Share Allocation.  
 

6. Entire Agreement.  This Agreement contains the entire Agreement of the parties and    

supersedes all prior negotiations, correspondence understandings and agreements by or 

between the parties regarding the subject matter hereof. This Agreement may not be 

amended except upon written consent of both parties. 
 

7. Waiver. Any waiver at any time by any party of its rights with respect to default or any 

other matter arising in connection with this Agreement shall not be deemed to be a 

waiver with respect to any other default or matter. 
 

8. Governing Law.  This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of California 

and the rights and obligations of the parties hereto shall be construed and enforced in 

accordance with the laws of the State of California. 
 

9. Attorneyôs Fees.  In the event of any legal or equitable proceedings for enforcement of 

any terms of this Agreement, or any alleged dispute, breach of, default or 

misinterpretations in connection with any provision of this Agreement, the prevailing 

party in such action, or the non-dismissing party where dismissal occurs other than by 

reason of a settlement, shall be entitled to recover its reasonable costs and expenses 

including without limitation, reasonable attorneyôs fees and costs paid or incurred in good 

faith. 
 

10. Notice,  Any notice relating to this Agreement shall be given in writing and shall be 

deemed sufficiently given and served for all purposes when delivered personally or by 

generally recognized overnight courier service, or four business days after deposit in the 

United States mail certified or registered, return receipt requested with postage prepaid 

addressed as follow: 
 

To City: 

   City of Colfax 

   33 South Main Street 

   P.O. Box 702 

   Colfax, CA 95713 

   Attention: City Manager 

ITEM 4C







































15 of 43













































37 of 43

















 

Page 2 

 

The committee discussed options to update this policy including: 
 

1. Prepare a significant update of the Circulation Element to recognize current practices in 
transportation planning and develop appropriate mitigation policies as necessary. 
 

This would require significant staff work and the level of environmental work necessary to be in 
compliance with CEQA would most likely require services of outside consultants. Additionally, an 
update of the Circulation element may also trigger some level of update to the Land Use element as 
the two must be internally consistent by state law. 

 

2. Amend the Circulation element and rewrite policy 3.2.1.2 (and other policies as may be appropriate) 
to be less restrictive and to include more flexible language. 

 

This would also require some environmental determination but could most-likely be completed in 
house by current staff. A review (a possible minor amendment) of the Land Use element to ensure 
internal consistency would also be required. 

 

3. Leave the current policy language as is and  develop additional mitigation language that could 
provide further direction and interpretation to guide new development 

 

This may or may not require any environmental work depending on the language and policy 
direction it provides. 

 

It was decided that no. 2 above ς a simple amendment to the Circulation Element to rewrite the policy was 
the best option as it could primarily be accomplished in house with the least amount of time. The revised 
ǇƻƭƛŎȅ ƭŀƴƎǳŀƎŜ ǿƻǳƭŘ ƴƻǘ ƻƴƭȅ ŀƭƭƻǿ ŦƻǊ ŀ ƳƻǊŜ ŀǇǇǊƻǇǊƛŀǘŜ ƭŜǾŜƭ ƻŦ ǎŜǊǾƛŎŜ ǎǳŎƘ ŀǎ ά9έ ƻǊ ά5έΣ ōǳǘ could 
also include language that would allow the Council to consider grant exceptions to these service levels if 
certain factors (such as economic benefits, community character , severity of congestion, etc.) are present. 
 

It was decided that the policy language previously recommended in the 2009 draft report was still valid and 
appropriate: 
 

Revised Policy 3.2.1.1: The City shall άstrive to maintain a minimum level LOS Dέ at all 
intersections.  

 

Using άstriveέ instead of άǎhallέ ǇǊƻǾƛŘŜǎ ǘƘŜ ŦƭŜȄƛōƛƭƛǘȅ ǘƻ ŜƴŎƻǳǊŀƎŜ ƴŜǿ ŘŜǾŜƭƻǇƳŜƴǘ ŀƴŘ ǎǘǊŜŜǘ 
improvements while still ensuring that necessary mitigation and improvements will be required as part of 
the new development.   
 

Recommendation 
 

Staff recommends the City Council review and discuss the proposed language and provide direction as 
appropriate. Next steps may include holding a public workshop to gather comments on the proposed 
language and direct staff to prepare the necessary amendments to the existing General Plan and to prepare 
the associated environmental documentation to process the amendment.   

 

2 of 2


	00A 151118 Agenda
	04A Minutes
	151028 Minutes
	Letter to the City Council

	04B Cash Summary October for Web
	2016-04 Staff Report Cash Summary Oct 2015
	October Cash Summary Data

	04C Whitcomb Fair Share Agreement
	Whitcomb Fair Share Agmnt Parcel F 11-18-15
	Map of Whitcomb Ave
	Whitcomb Fair share agreement final

	07A Ordinance 527 Filling Council Vacancy
	151103 Ord 527 Council Vacancy
	Ordinance Number 527 Cover Amending Filling Council Vacancy
	Ordinance 527 Text

	08A Recology Update
	Solidwaste Franchise Agreement Update SR
	110627 Recology Solid Waste Franchise

	08B Circulation Element Comm Update 11-18-15



